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Castle Malgwyn (Hotel and Farm)

SN213436   OS 25” 1st edition III.14 and VII.2   Cilgerran
Cadw Register of Hstoric Parks and Gardens as one entry.

Until the 18th century there was only a farmhouse here. An ironworks was built.

1792   purchased by Sir Benjamin Hammett

1798   House built

1806   Iron works closed. Sir Benjamin’s son sold the property to Abel Anthony Gower of 

          Glandovan.  This family owned it until after the second world war.

1811   Fenton praised it but J.R.Phillips (The History of Cilgerran 1867) says that he was wrong          

           in thinking that there was a castle on this site.                                                                 

1867   “There is nothing worthy of notice in the mansion itself....but the surrounding grounds are     

           most tastefully set out and the numerous plots of flower gardens, when in full bloom, gaily   

           contrasting with the lovely green of the lawn, and enhanced by the deathlike stillness of   

           the place etc etc render (it) a perfect Elysium etc etc”  (J.R.Phillips above)

           The farm is built on a defensive site. It is in Manordeifi parish and also came into the    

           ownership of Sir Benjamin Hammet. 

           Sir Benjamin died c 1801 at Cilrhiwiau in the adjoining parish of Llanfihangelpenfedw and    

           his remains were taken back to his native Taunton. His widow and son wound up the   

           whole (tinworks) concern and the estate was sold by an order of the Court of Chancery to

           Abel Anthony Gower Esq. of Glandovan.

           By 1867 the walks and bridges in the Morgaau dell were in a dilapidated condition.

           On the death of A.A.Gower the estate became the property of his nephew Abel Lewes 

           Gower who married Elizabeth, daughter of James Logan of Clarkson, Stirlingshire. She  

           was sister to Sir William Logan the eminent geologist.   

           Abel Lewes Gower greatly improved his property erecting outhouses and stables near 

           the river bank and constructed, at an immense outlay, one of the finest gardens in South   

           Wales, which is situate near the farm buildings of Castle Maelgwyn in the parish of   

          Manordeifi. (JRP). 

           Mr Gower was High Sheriff of Pembrokeshire in 1845 and died in 1849.

           His widow continued to develop the valley near the mansion including a proposed    

           carriageway along the valley to Cilgerran.

1870    (Journal of Horticulture and Cottage Garden: Directory)  

            Mrs A.L. Gower.  Gardener  William Hutchison.

1871    CSAllen  The Tivyside Photographic Souvenir

            See photograph enclosed

 Date unknown:  photograph of glasshouses, rose beds and house at the farm.

Western Telegraph  8th December 1999  

           New Owner plans upgrade for Country House Hotel.

Documents in file;

Text

Photograph of OS 6” map and copy/enlargements (2)

Photocopies of OS 25” map (2)

Listings of mansion and coach-house

Colour photograph of gate pier

Colour photographs of plaque on lodge wall (2)

B&W photograph of mansion

Cutting Western Telegraph 8th December 1999

Hotel brochure undated

“Pembrokeshire Life” feature undated

Colour photograph of OS 25” map: southern tip of gardens at Castel Malgwyn farm and copy/enlargements (5)

Photocopies of northern part of gardens at the farm (3)

Composite photocopies of farm (5)

Listing of farm

B&W photograph (c1871?) of gardens at present farm (copyright TL)

Letter 18th August 2000 which accompanied the above photograph from TL

Western Telegraph 1st May 2002 report that the property is for sale

Booklet Castell Malgwyn produced by previous owners of the hotel 2000

Colour photographs of cast iron plaques on two bridges

Pembrokeshire Life  2003   Pembrokeshire and the Gowers

16th July 2004   Meeting of the Pembrokeshire branch WHGT led by invited expert Julian Orbach.

In addition to the entrance, the drive and the coachhouse we walked west and then south along the bank of the Teivi on a cart-wide track. After a few hundred yards we turned left and backover and climbed the wooded slope. Mixed native and introduced plantings including lime, horse chestnut, elm, sweet chestnut and various conifers.

The path hairpins towards the south and climbs to a point where it proceeds further south and a left turn enters a very well made short (perhaps 10m) tunnel. Around the entrance are large jagged rocks both natural and arranged,

We emerged onto a north-south track sloping down to the left towards the house and rising slightly to the right, all along the edge of a very deep, steep sided valley. 

Right turn: on our right a slate (mostly on end) wall bounding fields. On our left an occasional low wall and a steep drop. The map shows paths and bridges but these must have been engineered and the edges have mostly disappeared. One can see the occasional edging. The scenery is dramatic and comes as such a surprise after the soft landscape that one has just left.

Some distance southwards and upwards, then a gentle descent to the east-west public road. High round-arch bridge has a cast-iron plaque to Hammet and next to it is a pointed arch said to indicate a former footpath.

No attempt was made to descend to the stream.

Return to the mansion along the track whence we came but ignoring the tunnel.

The plaque on the Hammet bridge reads:

HAMMET  BRIDGE

Was erected and

GARNONS MILL ROAD

made at the expense of

SIR BENJAMIN HAMMET Knt

Opened Aug 21st 1800

The cast iron plaque on the bridge close to the entrance has the date 1799 and a cross motif.

8th February 2005  Estate agency board on the river side of the lodge – For Sale

